PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1997/ SR 17
18 July 1997

Oiginal: ENGISH

ECONCM C AND SOOI AL COUNCI L
Subst anti ve session of 1997
PROVI SI ONAL SUMWARY RECORD OF THE 17t h MEETI NG
Held at the Palais des Nations, Ceneva,

on Monday, 7 July 1997, at 3 p.m

President : M. HENZE ( Ger many)
(Vi ce-President)
CONTENTS

CPERATI ONAL ACTIMI TIES O THE UNI TED NATI ONS FOR | NTERNATI ONAL DEVELOPMENT
COCPERATI ON

(b) FOLLONV UP TO PCLI CY RECOMMENDATI ONS OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY
(continued)

Corrections to this record should be submtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a nenorandum and al so i ncorporated in
a copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this

docunment to the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des
Nat i ons, Ceneva.

GE. 97-62541 (E)



E/ 1997/ SR 17
page 2

In the absence of M. Galuska (Czech Republic), M. Henze (CGermany),
Vice-President, took the Chair

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

CPERATI ONAL ACTIMI TIES O THE UNI TED NATI ONS FOR | NTERNATI ONAL DEVELOPMENT
COCPERATI ON

(b) FOLLOWNV UP TO PCLI CY RECOMMENDATI ONS OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY
(agenda item3 (b)) ( continued) (E/ 1997/65 and Add. 1-4, and 89)

Ms. DURRANT (Jamaica) said that capacity-building priorities must
not be narrow y-focused or restrictive and nmust take into account the
specificities of individual countries. MNone of the issues identified in the
Secretary-General's report on the subject (E/ 1997/65/Add.3) were new, nor were
they all germane to every country. Paragraph 51 of the report stated that
much of the capacity-building work of the United Nati ons system was
United Nations-centred, nandate-driven, event-tenured and tailored to conform
to the procedures and requirenents of the concerned organi zations. That
situation nmust be changed and capacity-buil di ng made a country-driven process.

Capaci ty-bui I di ng shoul d include not only policy formation, but al so
institutional and hunman resource devel oprent. In Janaica, over 75 per cent of
all projects funded by the United Nations Devel opment Progranmmre (UNDP) were
managed | ocally. An Agenda for Devel opnent enphasi zed the inportance of
nati onal ownership of programres. The Country Strategy Note (CSN) could
provi de a conceptual and strategic framework for operational activities and
facilitate efficient progranm ng and delivery of assistance at the regi ona
level. However, it nust be based on a national devel opnent plan or simlar
priority-setting docunent. She suggested that the Secretariat should prepare
a report, to be submtted at the forthcomng triennial policy review, on the
experi ence of countries which had successfully adopted CSNs.

Lastly, the Council should be provided with informati on on past
experience at the regional and subregional |evels before pursuing the
possibility of a regional strategy note (E 1997/65, para. 76).

M. ALOM (Bangl adesh) said that capacity-building nust include a
nati onal education system and shoul d enphasi ze accountability, responsibility,
sinplified reporting and an integrated approach to system devel opment. A
common nmanual for national education guidelines should replace the various
manual s currently in use by different United Nations agencies. Joint training

programres shoul d al so be devel oped.



E/ 1997/ SR 17
page 3

Devel opment initiatives must be built fromthe bottomup and mnust
i nclude the participation of non-governmental organizations (NG), wonen
entrepreneurs, indigenous people, the informal sector and | ocal communities.
Sust ai nabl e humman devel oprent required capacity-building at the | evel of
Governnents and of civil society, and technical cooperation nust focus on the
extensi on of national capacities.

A system of information-sharing nust be devel oped at an early stage of

programm ng rather than ex post facto (E 1997/65/Add.2, para. 17), thereby

i mprovi ng coordi nati on and cohesi veness anong t he vari ous bodi es and avoi di ng
duplication and overl apping, and integrated programes shoul d be increasingly
sector-based rather than agency-| ed.

Wth regard to shared and col | aborati ve programmi ng, he wondered
whet her the proposed common progranmme and progranme-resource framework
(E/ 1997/ 65/ Add. 2, para. 23) was another nane for the United Nations
Devel opment Assi stance Framework (UNDAF); if so, he would prefer that a
single title were used for that mechanism He had received no reply to his
del egation's earlier request for clarification of the DAF and the CSN

National authorities should take the lead in inplenenting any
devel opnent framework since they, not the United Nations, were prinmarily
responsi bl e for the technical expertise and funding of such programres.
CGovernnents were best able to determ ne the needs of their own nationa
sectors and should be involved in the preparation of any devel opnent
assi stance or programme-resource framewor k.

Wth regard to the General Assenbly's request that the specialized
agenci es shoul d make efforts to achi eve common prem ses (Ceneral Assenbly
resol uti on 50/ 120 (1994), para. 44; E/ 1997/65/Add. 2, para. 39), he noted that
countries were not, in fact, on an equal footing and that the question of
conmmon prem ses nust take into consideration the specific circunstances and
situation of each of the countries concerned.

Wth respect to regional and subregi onal devel opnent cooperation, he
enphasi zed the need to invol ve national Covernments and institutions at the
programm ng and i npl enent ati on stages, even though the progranmmes thensel ves
were inplemented by the regional institutions. He questioned the useful ness
of the subregional country strategy notes proposed by the Secretariat at the

previ ous neeting, since resources were progranmmed at the regional, not the



E/ 1997/ SR 17
page 4

subregional, level. It would be better to establish a forumfor discussion
bet ween national representatives and their devel opment partners at the
subregional level, simlar to that which already existed at the regi ona

| evel .

Lastly, his delegation was conmitted to the progranmme approach as a
means of achieving better integration of the United Nations system but
enphasi zed that it nust be inplenented flexibly and take into account the
i ndi vi dual needs of countries.

Ms. ASHI PALA- MJSAVYl  (Chserver for Nam bia) said that her

del egation attached great inportance to the operational activities of the
United Nations because of their conplenentarity to her country's devel opnent
activities. The availability of resources was essential for the elimnation
of poverty, and strengthening the capacities of conmunities was the key to
their enpowernment. The agencies' dw ndling resource base nmade it inpossible
for themto conplenent effectively the needs of devel oping countries. Her
del egation agreed with the Secretary-CGeneral that there was a need to expand
the traditional donor base. The issue of “graduation” fromrecipient to donor
status (E/ 1997/65, para. 23) was an inportant one, which her del egati on would
pursue at the 1998 conprehensive review.

In addition to the criteria nmentioned in paragraph 39 of the report
(E/ 1997/ 65), the success of the resident coordinator system al so depended on
the capacity, openness and willingness displayed by the head of the system
The sel ection procedure for resident coordinators was therefore of great
i mportance, and recipient countries were best able to judge its effectiveness.

Wil e she wel comed United Nations reforns ained at enhanci ng support for
devel opi ng countries, they should strengthen the agencies at the field |evel,
and the resulting savings shoul d be channell ed towards operati onal activities.

Wth regard to regional and subregi onal cooperation, the capacities of
t he Econom ¢ Conmission for Africa (ECA) nust be strengthened if there was to
be any neaningful followup to the major world conferences. Consideration
shoul d be given to the diversities of the various devel opi ng regions. Lastly,
she doubted the viability of the proposed regional strategy note since there
were many countries which did not yet have CSNs.

M. EGHIM (Coserver for the Islamic Republic of Iran) said there

shoul d be opportunities for intergovernnental discussion of the view and



E/ 1997/ SR 17
page 5

ideas put forward in the Secretary-Ceneral's report (E 1997/65 and Add. 1-4).
The resident coordinator's primary responsibility for enhancing the
coordi nation and coherence of United Nations devel opnent activities at the
field I evel should not affect the independence of the respective funds and
programres. Common prem ses could contribute to the efficiency and
ef fectiveness of operational activities and reduce adm nistrative costs but
must not place a financial burden on the host countries. The activities of
i nternational organizations, particularly the United Nations funds and
programres, should contribute to capacity-building in devel opi ng countri es.
In that regard, the activities of the resident coordinator should be eval uated
on a regul ar basis.

M. IBRAHM (Milaysia) said that, while his del egati on wel coned
the Secretary-Ceneral's report on progress in the inplementation of
Ceneral Assenbly resolution 50/120 (E/ 1997/65), it would have preferred that
the report included a nore explicit statement of the problens related to
resources, field- and regional-1evel coordination and capacity-building
(E/ 1997/ 65/ Add. 1-3). Problens nust be articul ated coherently if they were to
be sol ved.

He asked a nunber of questions related to the success of operationa
activities. Wwere were the resources comng fron? Was the system receiving
enough of then? Wat were the prospects for additional funds? Wre resources
bei ng put to the best possible use? Wre procedures in place to ensure the
effective inplenmentation of programmes? D d field operatives have the
necessary managenment expertise?

There had been little discussion of the need to nobilize resources from
the private sector. He welconed the fact that the United Nations Children's
Fund (UNICEF) and the United Nations Popul ati on Fund (UNFPA) had begun
bui I ding bridges to private fundi ng sources.

Governnents nust take the lead in identifying areas for
capacity-building. National ownership of capacity-building programres
was of the utnost inportance.

He wel coned the decision in General Assenbly resolution 50/120 (1994)
(para. 18) that the CSN should include an indication of the | evel of resources
needed. It was inportant for the CSN, which gave a focus to relations between

nati onal Governments and the United Nations system to be adopted as widely



E/ 1997/ SR 17
page 6

and quickly as possible. It was unfortunate that sone of the specialized
agenci es did not recognize the rel evance of the CSN, thereby conplicating the
task of the resident coordinators and the host Covernnents. That issue should
be addressed. Furthernore, the proposed regional strategy note woul d be

i npossi bl e wi thout a pre-existing CSN

M. ACEMAH (Uganda) said he wel coned the Secretary-Ceneral’s
ref orm proposal s, which should not be viewed nerely as a cost-cutting
exercise. |Inproved programe delivery would make the United Nations system
nore effective

Country-level coordination was in the interests of all the partners,
since it ensured optimal resource utilization and a reduction of duplication
It was thus inportant to strengthen the resident coordi nator system

Nati onal execution was an inportant means of promoting sustainabl e
i ndi genous capacity-building. H's del egati on supported recomrendati on 1
(E/ 1997/ 65) since a strengthening of capacities in the devel oping countries
was a prerequisite for eradicating poverty and achi eving rapid econom c growh
and political stability.

H s del egation al so supported recomendati on 16 on the testing of the
concept of a regional strategy note. It hoped that donors woul d provide
addi tional resources for regular evaluation of the inpact of operationa
activities for devel opnent.

Ms. KUNADI (India) said that there had been considerable efforts
in recent years to inprove the efficiency of the United Nations agencies by
stream i ni ng operations, increasing transparency and cutting admnistrative
and other costs. QGeater efforts had al so been nade to use common prem ses
and information services. At the field |level, coordination between agencies
had been significantly inproved, and increased di al ogue had ensured that the
concerns of traditional donors were reflected.

As part of the reformprocess, resources nust be increased to nmeet the
growi ng needs of developing countries and to ensure the effectiveness of
operational activities. The decline in core funding nust be addressed,
especially in terns of the decrease in official devel opment assistance (CDA).
Al though contributions to both core and non-core funds were essentially being
nmade by a small nunber of countries, it should not be forgotten that nany
devel opi ng countries were making significant contributions to admnistrative

and other costs at the field | evel.



E/ 1997/ SR 17
page 7

The generation of political will to honour commtments nust be a
priority; the devel oping countries should not have to shoul der the entire
burden of devel opnment thensel ves. Wile Sout h-South cooperation and technica
cooperation anmong devel oping countries (TCDC) were inportant, the
effectiveness of United Nati ons operati ons depended upon enhanced, predictable
funding that took into account such criteria as per capita incone, popul ation,
the extent of poverty and the effectiveness of aid utilization. Mechanisns
such as the annual pledgi ng conference nust be carefully examned with a view
to inproving their ability to nobilize resources

Devel opment needed to be pursued in its own right, since it was a
prerequisite for peace and security. The sovereign right of countries to
exploit their own resources nust, however, be respected.

Doubt s had been expressed about the sustainability of sone capacities
bui It through techni cal cooperation and about the possible negative effects of
sonme activities on | ong-term capacity-buil ding and even aggravated dependency.
The Secretary-CGeneral (E 1997/65) had noted that too much enphasis was bei ng
laid on i mredi ate econom c outputs and too little on policy framework and
social, cultural and environmental questions. Capacity-building and
i mmedi at e econom ¢ outputs were not mutual ly exclusive issues. |ndeed,
capaci ty-bui |l di ng divorced fromeconomc gain was of little use
Capaci ty-buil ding nust al so be country-driven, situation-specific, and based
on a partnership approach. It was best undertaken for well-defined
devel opnent issues with a programmati c approach

As recogni zed in General Assenbly resol ution 50/120, capacity-building,
t hough inmportant, must not be the sole aimof operational activities. It
shoul d be linked to enhancing nati onal execution and reduci ng dependence on
external inputs. Al though |ong-term devel opment of capacities was inportant,
an enphasi s on short-termprojects was hel pful in ensuring eval uation and
accountability. Wile civil society should be closely involved at every
level, the United Nations devel opnent system needed above all to interact with
Covernnents, which were the repositories of public trust and the
representatives of civil society.

Regi onal strategy notes risked detracting fromthe country-driven nature
of operations. Mre detailed intergovernnental dial ogue was a prerequisite

for decisions on mandate funding and on the distinctive identities of the



E/ 1997/ SR 17
page 8

operational agencies, especially regarding fund-raising activities in a joint
framework. Coordination of external assistance at the country | evel should,
however, remain the prerogative of soverei gn Governnents.

Ms. SHAM POO (Deputy Executive Director, United Nations Children’s
Fund (UNICEF)) said that the UNDAF was still inits initial pilot stage. It

was intended to enhance the efficiency of United Nations devel opment resources
at the country level by providing a programmatic unbrella for coordinating the
pl anni ng of funds and programmes whi ch woul d i nvol ve Governnents, NGOs and

| ocal communities

Repl ying to a question by the observer for Norway, she said that one of
the ainms of UNDAF was to help streaniine the preparatory process of individua
funds by maki ng use of accunul ated experience fromother programres. There
were currently UNDAFs relating to 11 country programres at different stages of
devel opnent and 9 nore woul d be added in the comng year. At the country
| evel , each head of progranmre woul d continue to submt country-support
programres to the governing body concerned, so as to ensure the accountability
of each agency. The resident coordi nator woul d coordinate the reports of the
different teans. To strengthen the UNDAF process, the subm ssion of country
programes needed to be synchronized.

She informed the observer for Switzerland that CGhana s experience had
al ready been put into witing and that the report had been submtted to
vari ous executive boards.

Repl ying to the observer for Swaziland, she said that UNI CEF had been
working on child rights issues, including child |abour, comrercial sexua
exploitation, |andmnes, children in conflicts, the inpacts of sanctions on
children and specific situations.

M. HAEMMERLI (Chief, Qperational Activities for Devel opment Unit,

Departnent for Policy Coordinati on and Sustai nabl e Devel opnent) said he coul d
assure the representative of Jamaica that a conprehensive eval uation of the
various agenci es' experience of CSNs woul d be nade in the next triennial
policy review

He inforned the representative of Bangl adesh that the Unit was currently
drafting common guidelines for national execution. Those guidelines

enphasi zed the need to abide by CSNs whil e taking regional considerations into



E/ 1997/ SR 17
page 9

account. UNDAF woul d be consulting closely with Governnents regarding the
question of resources. Attenpts would also be made to sinplify the
i nstrunents.
Regar di ng subregi onal strategy notes, the aimwas to achieve a cl ose
country-level link. A representative subregion would be chosen for the
pur poses of highlighting the |inkages between programres, CSNs and the
“inter-country” dinension. Wile it was a thorny issue, the Unit was
convi nced of the advantages of regional activities and the inportance of
i ntroduci ng mechani sns such as neetings of a nunber of resident coordinators.
The representative of Mal aysia was correct in enphasizing the inportance
of stating problens in a straightforward manner. The interimreport would be
suppl emented by nore detail ed anal yses the followi ng year. The resident

coordi nator issue was currently a subject of intense debate at a senior |evel

The neeting rose at 4.10 p.m




